

# Road Vehicle Standards Rules 2019

## Renumbering Comparison - Exposure Draft 2017 to Rules 2019

<b>Part 1—Introduction</b>	<b>11</b>
<b>Division 1—Preliminary</b>	<b>11</b>
1 — Name	1
2 — Commencement	11
3 — Authority	11
<b>Division 2—Simplified outline of this instrument</b>	<b>22</b>
4 — Simplified outline of this instrument	22
<b>Division 3—Definitions</b>	<b>4</b>
5 — Definitions	4
<b>Part 2—The Register of Approved Vehicles</b>	<b>88</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>	<b>88</b>
6 — Simplified outline of this Part	88
7 — Purpose of this Part	88
<b>Division 2—Content of RAV</b>	<b>99</b>
8 — Information to be included on RAV	99
9 — Who may enter information on RAV	99
10 — Certain information on RAV to be publicly accessible	99
11 — Correction of errors on RAV	1010
12 — Determination—information to be included on RAV etc	1010
13 — <del>Determination—format of information to be included on RAV</del>	10
<b>Part 3—Entry on RAV via entry pathways</b>	<b>1212</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>	<b>1212</b>
14 — <del>13</del> Simplified outline of this Part	1212
15 — <del>14</del> Purpose of this Part	1212
<b>Division 2—Type approval pathway</b>	<b>14</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Requirements of the type approval pathway</b>	<b>14</b>
16 — <del>15</del> Type approval pathway	14
<b>Subdivision B—Application for, and grant of, road vehicle type approval</b>	<b>15</b>
17 — <del>16</del> Application	15
18 — <del>17</del> Further information and inspection of premises etc	16
19 — <del>Minister-18 Secretary</del> may refuse to consider application in certain circumstances	16
20 — <del>19</del> Criteria for deciding application	16
21 — <del>20</del> Other considerations	19
21 — <del>Timeframe for deciding application</del>	19
22 — <del>Minister to decide application</del>	19
23 — <del>Grant Period</del> of road vehicle type approval	19
24 — <del>Refusal of application</del>	20
23 — <del>Notice requirements for grant of road vehicle type approval</del>	19
24 — <del>Notice requirements for refusal to grant road vehicle type approval</del>	20
<b>Subdivision C—Conditions applying to road vehicle type approvals</b>	<b>20</b>
25 — <del>Conditions of road vehicle type approval</del>	20
26 — <del>Condition about compliance with national road vehicle standards</del>	21
27 — <del>Condition about providing evidence of compliance with changed national road vehicle standards</del>	21

28	—	<a href="#">Condition about a conformity of production system</a>	22
29	—	<a href="#">28 Condition about notifying the Secretary of errors in RAV entries</a>	22
30	—	<a href="#">29 Condition about providing information etc. to the <del>Minister</del>Secretary or an inspector</a>	22
30	—	<a href="#">Condition about keeping up-to-date records of supporting information</a>	23
<b>Division 3—Concessional RAV entry approval pathway</b>			<b>24</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Requirements of the concessional RAV entry approval pathway</b>			<b>24</b>
31	—	<a href="#">Concessional RAV entry approval pathway</a>	24
<b>Subdivision B—Application for, and grant of, concessional RAV entry approval</b>			<b>24</b>
32	—	<a href="#">Application</a>	24
33	—	<a href="#">Further information and inspection of road vehicle</a>	25
34	—	<a href="#">Minister may refuse to consider application in certain circumstances</a>	25
35	—	<a href="#">Criteria for deciding application</a>	25
36	—	<a href="#">Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del>—older vehicles</a>	25
37	—	<a href="#">Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del>—vehicles to be modified by the holder of a RAW approval</a>	26
38	—	<a href="#">Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del>—special <del>exemption</del> <del>purpose vehicle</del></a>	27
39	—	<a href="#">Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del>—personal effects</a>	27
40	—	<a href="#">Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del>—trailers</a>	29
41	—	<a href="#">Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del>—road vehicle suitable for entry on RAV</a>	31
42	—	<a href="#">Minister may make guidelines regarding suitability for entry on RAV</a>	31
43	—	<a href="#">Other considerations</a>	31
43	—	<a href="#">Minister to decide application</a>	32
44	—	<a href="#">Grant Timeframe for deciding application</a>	32
45	—	<a href="#">Notice requirements for grant of concessional RAV entry approval</a>	32
45	—	<a href="#">Refusal of application</a>	32
46	—	<a href="#">Notice requirements for refusal to grant concessional RAV entry approval</a>	33
<b>Subdivision C—Conditions applying to concessional RAV entry approvals</b>			<b>33</b>
46	—	<a href="#">47 Conditions of concessional RAV entry approval</a>	33
47	—	<a href="#">48 Condition applying to approvals for vehicles to be modified by registered automotive workshops</a>	34
49	—	<a href="#">Condition about providing information etc. on request</a>	34
<b>Division 4—Miscellaneous</b>			<b>35</b>
48	—	<a href="#">50 Circumstances in which a road vehicle may be provided</a>	35
49	—	<a href="#">51 Modifications of road vehicles</a>	35
50	—	<a href="#">52 Allocation of vehicle identification number</a>	35
<b>Part 4—Tools</b>			<b>37</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>			<b>37</b>
51	—	<a href="#">53 Simplified outline of this Part</a>	37
52	—	<a href="#">54 Purpose of this Part</a>	38
<b>Division 2—RAW approvals</b>			<b>38</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Application for, and grant of, RAW approval</b>			<b>38</b>
53	—	<a href="#">55 Application</a>	38
54	—	<a href="#">56 Further information and inspection of premises</a>	39
55	—	<a href="#">Minister-57 Secretary may refuse to consider application</a>	39
56	—	<a href="#">58 Criteria for deciding application</a>	39
57	—	<a href="#">59 Other considerations</a>	40
58	—	<a href="#">Minister to decide60 Timeframe for deciding application</a>	40
59	—	<a href="#">61 Period of approval</a>	41
60	—	<a href="#">Grant of62 Notice requirements for grant of RAW approval</a>	41
61	—	<a href="#">Refusal of application</a>	41

63	Notice requirements for refusal to grant RAW approval .....	41
<b>Subdivision B—Conditions applying to RAW approvals</b>		<b>41</b>
62	64 Conditions of RAW approvals .....	41
63	65 Condition about <u>manufacture and</u> modification requirements .....	42
64	66 Condition about record keeping .....	43
65	67 Condition about providing information etc. to the <u>MinisterSecretary or an inspector</u> .....	4444
<b>Division 3—Model <u>reports</u>Reports</b>		<b>45</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Application for, and grant of, approval of <u>model report</u>Model Report</b>		<b>45</b>
66	68 Application.....	45
67	69 Further information and inspection of vehicles or premises.....	45
68	<u>Minister70 Secretary</u> may refuse to consider application.....	46
69	<u>Criteria71 Criteria for deciding application</u> .....	46
72	<u>Eligibility criterion—Model Report for vehicle covered by entry on SEVs Register</u> .....	46
73	<u>Eligibility criterion—Model Report for used two-wheeled or three-wheeled vehicle</u> .....	47
74	<u>Eligibility criterion—Model Report for trailer with aggregate trailer mass of more than 4.5 tonnes</u> .....	47
75	<u>Eligibility criterion—Model Report for certain vehicles subject to second stage of manufacture</u> .....	48
76	<u>Circumstances in which substantial compliance permitted</u> .....	48
77	<u>Other considerations</u> .....	49
78	<u>Timeframe</u> for deciding application .....	49
70	<u>Other considerations</u> .....	49
71	<u>Minister to decide application</u> .....	49
72	<u>Grant of approval</u> .....	50
73	<u>Refusal of application</u> .....	50
79	<u>Notice requirements for approval of Model Report</u> .....	50
80	<u>Notice requirements for refusal to approve Model Report</u> .....	50
<b>Subdivision B—Conditions applying to approval of <u>model report</u>Model Report</b>		<b>50</b>
74	81 Conditions of approval .....	51
75	82 Condition about keeping the <u>model report-Model Report accurate and</u> up-to-date .....	51
76	83 Condition about keeping records relating to distribution of <u>model report-Model Report</u> .....	54
77	84 Condition about allowing the Department to use the <u>model report-Model Report</u> .....	54
78	85 Condition about keeping records of certain testing results.....	54
86	Condition about providing information etc. to the <u>Secretary or an inspector</u> .....	55
<b>Subdivision C—Variation of approved <u>model report-Model Report</u></b>		<b>55</b>
79	87 Variation of approved <u>model report-Model Report</u> .....	55
<b>Subdivision D—Ministerial determinations</b>		<b>56</b>
80	88 Determination—information to be contained in <u>model report-Model Report</u> .....	56
81	89 Determination—compliance with standards .....	56
<b>Division 4—AVV approvals</b>		<b>58</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Application for, and grant of, AVV approval</b>		<b>58</b>
82	90 Application.....	58
83	91 Further information .....	58
84	<u>Minister92 Secretary</u> may refuse to consider application.....	58
85	93 Criteria for deciding application .....	59
86	94 Other considerations .....	59
87	<u>Minister to decide95 Timeframe for deciding</u> application .....	60
88	<u>Grant96 Period</u> of <u>AVV approval</u> .....	60

89	Refusal of application .....	60
97	Notice requirements for grant of AVV approval.....	60
98	Notice requirements for refusal to grant AVV approval .....	60
<b>Subdivision B—Conditions applying to AVV approvals</b>		<b>61</b>
90	99 Conditions of AVV approvals.....	61
91	100 Condition about conduct of verifications .....	61
92	101 Condition about <del>maintaining equipment etc. used to conduct</del> assurance and location of inspections .....	62
93	102 Conditions about conflicts of interest.....	63
94	103 Condition about record keeping .....	63
95	104 Condition about providing information etc. to the <del>Minister</del> Secretary or an inspector .....	64
96	105 Condition about notifying the Secretary of errors in RAV entries .....	64
<b>Subdivision C—Ministerial determinations</b>		<b>64</b>
97	106 Determination relating to inspection of road vehicles.....	64
	107 Determination relating to damage or corrosion.....	65
<b>Division 5—Testing facility approvals</b>		<b>66</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Application for, and grant of, testing facility approval</b>		<b>66</b>
98	108 Application.....	67
99	109 Further information and inspection of premises.....	67
100	<del>Minister</del> 110 Secretary may refuse to consider application.....	68
101	111 Criteria for deciding application .....	68
102	112 Other considerations .....	68
103	<del>Minister to decide</del> 113 Timeframe for deciding application .....	68
104	<del>Grant</del> 114 Period of testing facility approval .....	69
105	Refusal of application .....	69
	115 Notice requirements for grant of testing facility approval.....	69
	116 Notice requirements for refusal to grant testing facility approval .....	69
<b>Subdivision B—Conditions applying to testing facility approval</b>		<b>70</b>
106	117 Conditions of testing facility approval .....	70
107	118 Condition about testing .....	70
108	119 Conditions relating to equipment used to carry out testing .....	70
109	120 Condition about appropriately skilled personnel.....	71
110	121 Condition about testing reports .....	71
111	122 Condition about notifying recipients of errors in testing reports.....	71
112	123 Condition about record keeping .....	71
113	124 Condition about providing information etc. to the <del>Minister</del> Secretary or an inspector .....	71
<b>Division 6—Specialist and Enthusiast Vehicles Register</b>		<b>73</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Application for entry of road vehicle on SEVs Register</b>		<b>73</b>
114	125 Application for entry on SEVs Register.....	73
115	126 Further information .....	73
116	127 Secretary may refuse to consider application in certain circumstances.....	74
117	<del>Criteria</del> 128 Variant of a model of a road vehicle .....	74
	129 Eligibility for entry on SEVs Register .....	76
118	130 Performance <del>criteria</del> criterion.....	78
119	131 Environmental <del>criteria</del> criterion .....	78
120	132 Mobility <del>criteria</del> criterion .....	79
121	133 Left-hand drive <del>criteria</del> criterion .....	79
122	134 Campervans and motorhomes <del>criteria</del> criterion.....	79
123	135 Rarity <del>criteria</del> criterion .....	80
124	Variant of a model of a road vehicle .....	80

125 — 136	Determinations relating to criteria for entry on SEVs Register .....	81
126	Determinations relating to road vehicles marketed outside Australia .....	81
127	Secretary to consider 137 Timeframe for considering application .....	81
128	Entry of road vehicle 138 When Secretary may make or refuse to make entry on SEVs Register .....	82
139	Notice requirements for entry on SEVs Register .....	83
129	Refusal of application .....	83
140	Notice requirements for refusal to make entry on SEVs Register .....	83
<b>Subdivision B—Maintaining SEVs Register</b>		<b>83</b>
130 — 141	Information to be included on the SEVs Register .....	83
142	Correction of errors on SEVs Register .....	84
131 — 143	Expiry of entries on the SEVs Register .....	84
<b>Part 5—Import approvals</b>		<b>85</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>		<b>85</b>
132 — 144	Simplified outline of this Part .....	85
133 — 145	Purpose of this Part .....	85
<b>Division 2—RAV entry import approvals</b>		<b>86</b>
134 — 146	Grant of RAV entry import approval .....	86
<b>Division 3—Non-RAV entry import approvals</b>		<b>87</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Application for, and grant of, non-RAV entry import approval</b>		<b>87</b>
135 — 147	Application for approval .....	87
136 — 148	Further information .....	87
137 — 149	Minister may refuse to consider application in certain circumstances .....	87
138 — 150	Criteria for deciding application .....	88
139 — 151	Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del> —non-road use .....	88
140 — 152	Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del> —general discretion .....	88
141 — 153	Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del> —temporary use .....	88
142 — 153	Other considerations .....	89
143 — 154	Minister to decide 154 Timeframe for deciding application .....	89
144 — 155	Grant 155 Notice requirements for grant of non-RAV entry import approval .....	89
145	Refusal of application .....	90
156	Notice requirements for refusal to grant non RAV entry import approval .....	90
<b>Subdivision B—Conditions applying to non-RAV entry import approvals</b>		<b>90</b>
146 — 157	Conditions of approval .....	90
158	Condition about providing information etc. on request .....	91
<b>Division 4—Reimportation import approval</b>		<b>92</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Application for, and grant of, reimportation import approval</b>		<b>92</b>
147 — 159	Application .....	92
148 — 160	Further information and inspection of road vehicle .....	92
149 — 161	Minister 161 Secretary may refuse to consider application in certain circumstances .....	92
150 — 162	Criteria for deciding application .....	93
151 — 163	Eligibility <del>criteria</del> <del>criteria</del> .....	93
152 — 164	Other considerations .....	93
153 — 165	Minister to decide 165 Timeframe for deciding application .....	94
154 — 166	Grant 166 Notice requirements for grant of reimportation import approval .....	94
155	Refusal of application .....	98
167	Notice requirements for refusal of to grant reimportation import approval .....	94
<b>Subdivision B—Conditions applying to reimportation import approvals</b>		<b>94</b>
156 — 168	Conditions of reimportation import approval .....	94
169	Condition about providing information etc. on Secretary's request .....	99

<b>Division 5—Miscellaneous</b>	<b>100</b>
<del>157</del> — <del>170</del> Allocation of vehicle identification number.....	100
<del>158</del> — <del>171</del> Circumstances in which a person is permitted to import a road vehicle.....	100
<b>Part 6—Type approvals for road vehicle components used or supplied for use in the manufacture of road vehicles</b>	<b>101</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>	<b>101</b>
<del>159</del> — <del>172</del> Simplified outline of this Part .....	101
<del>160</del> — <del>173</del> Purpose of this Part .....	101
<b>Division 2—Application for, and grant of, a road vehicle component type approval</b>	<b>102</b>
<del>161</del> — <del>174</del> Application.....	102
<del>162</del> — <del>175</del> Further information and inspection of premises.....	102
<del>163</del> — <del>Minister-176</del> <del>Secretary</del> may refuse to consider application in certain circumstances.....	103
<del>164</del> — <del>177</del> Criteria for deciding application .....	103
<del>165</del> — <del>178</del> Other considerations .....	105
<del>166</del> — <del>Minister to decide-179</del> <del>Timeframe for deciding</del> application .....	106
<del>167</del> — <del>Grant</del> <del>180</del> <del>Period of road vehicle component type</del> approval .....	106
<del>168</del> — <del>Refusal of application</del> .....	107
<del>181</del> <del>Notice requirements for grant of road vehicle component type approval</del> .....	106
<del>182</del> <del>Notice requirements for refusal to grant road vehicle component type approval</del> .....	107
<b>Division 3—Conditions applying to road vehicle component type approvals</b>	<b>108</b>
<del>169</del> — <del>183</del> Conditions of road vehicle component type approval .....	108
<del>170</del> — <del>184</del> Condition about compliance with national road vehicle standards .....	108
<del>171</del> — <del>Condition about providing evidence relating to proposed change to national road vehicle standards</del> .....	108
<del>172</del> — <del>185</del> Condition about a conformity of production system .....	109
<del>173</del> — <del>186</del> Condition about providing information etc. to the <del>Minister</del> <del>Secretary or an inspector</del> .....	109
<del>174</del> — <del>187</del> <del>Condition about keeping up-to-date records of supporting information</del> .....	110
<del>188</del> Condition about providing instructions for use <del>or installation of component</del> .....	110
<b>Part 7—Variation, suspension or revocation of approval</b>	<b>111</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>	<b>111</b>
<del>175</del> — <del>189</del> Simplified outline of this Part .....	111
<del>176</del> — <del>190</del> Purpose of this Part .....	111
<b>Division 2—Action on <del>Minister’s</del><del>Minister or Secretary’s</del> own initiative</b>	<b>112</b>
<del>177</del> — <del>191</del> <del>Minister or Secretary</del> may vary, suspend or revoke approval .....	112
<del>178</del> — <del>192</del> Considerations in deciding whether to vary, suspend or revoke approval.....	112
<del>179</del> — <del>193</del> Notifying holder of approval of decision to vary, suspend or revoke approval .....	114
<del>180</del> — <del>Publication of decision to vary, suspend or revoke approval</del> .....	114
<del>181</del> — <del>194</del> Effect of suspension.....	114
<del>182</del> — <del>Revocation of approval</del> .....	117
<b>Division 3—<del>Suspension of approval: evidence about compliance with proposed changes to national road vehicle standards</del></b>	<b>117</b>
<del>183</del> — <del>Automatic suspension if evidence is not provided about compliance with proposed change</del> .....	118
<del>184</del> — <del>Suspension if insufficient evidence is provided about compliance with proposed change</del> .....	119

<b>Division 4—Action on request by holder of approval</b>	<b>115</b>
185 — 195 Holder of approval may apply to vary for variation of approval .....	115
186 — 196 Minister or Secretary may seek further information.....	115
187 — 197 Minister or Secretary may vary approval .....	115
188 — 198 Holder may apply to suspend or revoke approval .....	116
189 — 199 Notifying holder of approval of decision to vary, suspend or revoke approval .....	116
190 — 200 Effect of suspension .....	116
191 — 201 Interaction with Division 2.....	117
<b>Division 4—Automatic suspension of approval: compliance with new or amended national road vehicle standards</b>	<b>118</b>
202 Automatic suspension: compliance with new or amended road vehicle standards .....	118
<b>Part 8—Recalls of road vehicles or approved road vehicle components</b>	<b>122</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>	<b>122</b>
192 — 203 Simplified outline of this Part .....	122
193 — 204 Purpose of this Part .....	122
205 Definitions .....	122
<b>Division 2—Compulsory recall of road vehicles or approved road vehicle components</b>	<b>124</b>
194 — 206 Compulsory recall of road vehicles or approved road vehicle components .....	124
195 — 207 Contents of a recall notice.....	126
196 — 208 Obligations of a supplier in relation to a recall notice.....	127
197 — 209 Holder of a type approval taken to be a supplier.....	128
198 — 210 Notification by persons who supply road vehicles or approved road vehicle components outside Australia if there is compulsory recall.....	129
199 — Interaction of multiple recall notices.....	129
<b>Division 3—Voluntary recall of road vehicles or approved road vehicle components</b>	<b>131</b>
200 — 211 Circumstances of voluntary recall of road vehicles or approved road vehicle components.....	131
212 Notification requirements for a voluntary recall of road vehicles or approved road vehicle components.....	131
<b>Division 4—Conferences for proposed recall notices</b>	<b>134</b>
<b>Subdivision A—Conference requirements before compulsory recall</b>	<b>134</b>
201 — 213 Minister must issue a proposed recall notice.....	134
202 — 214 Minister to be notified if no person wishes a conference to be held.....	134
203 — 215 Notification of conference.....	134
204 — 216 Recommendation after conclusion of conference.....	135
<b>Subdivision B—Conduct of conferences</b>	<b>135</b>
205 — 217 Conduct of conferences.....	135
<b>Subdivision C—Miscellaneous</b>	<b>136</b>
206 — 218 Recall notice without delay in case of danger to the public .....	136
207 — 219 Copy of notices under this Division to be given to suppliers .....	136
<b>Division 5—Miscellaneous</b>	<b>137</b>
208 — 220 Liability under a contract of insurance .....	137
<b>Part 9—<del>Cost recovery</del> <u>Miscellaneous</u></b>	<b>138</b>
<b><u>209 — Division 1—Introduction</u></b>	<b>139</b>
221 Simplified outline of this Part .....	139
210 — 222 Purpose of this Part .....	139

<b>Part 10—Miscellaneous</b>	<b>139</b>
<b>Division 1—Introduction</b>	<b>139</b>
211—Simplified outline of this Part	139
212—Purpose of this Part	139
<b>Division 2—Publication requirements</b>	<b>140</b>
213—223 Road vehicle type approvals	140
214—224 RAW approvals	140
215—225 Approved <del>model reports</del> Model Reports	140
216—226 AVV approvals	140
217—227 Testing facility approvals	140
218—228 Road vehicle component type approvals	141
229 Publication of decision to vary, suspend or revoke approval	141
<b>Division 3—Miscellaneous</b>	<b>142</b>
219—230 AAT review of decisions	142
220—231 Former holders of type approvals—ongoing obligation to provide supporting information	144
221—232 Holder of approvals—ongoing obligation to retain records	144
222—233 Advisory notice that thing is not a road vehicle	144
223—234 Delegation by the Minister	145
224—235 Delegation by the Secretary	145
225—236 Approved forms	146146